
OCTOBER 23, 2012  PAGE 1 

BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS 
TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

SIERRA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 
TUESDAY 11:00 a.m. OCTOBER 23, 2012 
 
PRESENT: 

Robert Larkin, Chairman 
Bonnie Weber, Vice Chairperson 
John Breternitz, Commissioner 

Kitty Jung, Commissioner 
David Humke, Commissioner 

 
Nancy Parent, Chief Deputy Clerk 

Katy Simon, County Manager 
Paul Lipparelli, Legal Counsel 

Charles Moore, Fire Chief 
 
 The Board convened at 11:00 a.m. in regular session in the Commission 
Chambers of the Washoe County Administration Complex, 1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, 
Nevada, and conducted the following business: 
 
12-208F AGENDA ITEM 2 
 
Agenda Subject: “Public Comment.  Comment heard under this item will be limited 
to two minutes per person and may pertain to matters both on and off the Board of 
Fire Commissioners agenda. The District will also hear public comment during 
individual action items, with comment limited to two minutes per person.  
Comments are to be made to the Board of Fire Commissioners as a whole.” 
 
 There was no response to the call for public comment. 
 
 CONSENT AGENDA 
 
12-209F AGENDA ITEM 3A 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approval of TMFPD, SFPD, Reno and Sparks City Council 
Meeting minutes from July 24, 2012.” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Breternitz, seconded by Commissioner 
Weber, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 3A be approved. 
 
  



PAGE 2  OCTOBER 23, 2012 

12-210F AGENDA ITEM 3B 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approval of TMFPD, SFPD and Reno City Council Joint 
Meeting from September 10, 2012.” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Breternitz, seconded by Commissioner 
Weber, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 3B be approved. 
 
12-211F AGENDA ITEM 3C 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approval of TMFPD-SFPD Joint Board of Fire 
Commissioners Meeting from September 11, 2012.” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Breternitz, seconded by Commissioner 
Weber, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 3C be approved. 
 
12-212F AGENDA ITEM 3D 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approval of WC Volunteer Report for September 2012.” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Breternitz, seconded by Commissioner 
Weber, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 3D be approved. 
 
12-213F    AGENDA ITEM 4 
 
Agenda Subject: “Fire Chief Report – A) Report and discussion related to Fire 
District operations by Chief Charles A. Moore; B) Monthly Statistics; and C) 
Volunteer Reports.” 
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore said this morning’s snow was welcome, because 
it would help diminish the area’s fire danger. He stated the District’s Fire Marshal was 
looking at the current fire-danger level and the expected wind conditions while 
considering allowing open burning for a brief period, which would give residents a 
chance to burn accumulated vegetation. He said a press release would be issued if the ban 
was lifted.  
 
 Chairman Larkin said people were already burning vegetation in his area, 
because they saw the state and the federal governments lift their burning bans. Chief 
Moore said there had been a lot of confusion about those bans being lifted. He noted 



OCTOBER 23, 2012  PAGE 3 

there was a difference between public and private lands, and burning on private land was 
still restricted.  
 
 Chief Moore said the City of Reno approved the zoning change for Station 
5, Mogul, and the next step would be to obtain the Special Use Permit. He stated staff 
was going through some site-planning exercises with the consultant and found the 
topography was an issue in making the truck bay work with its location next to the 
existing log cabin. He stated a little more time would be taken to consider the options and 
to make the trucks turning radiuses work better before applying for the Special Use 
Permit. He said Commissioner Breternitz suggested looking at an accelerated 
construction process, such as design/build or some other method, which would get the 
structure up and functional in the least amount of time. He believed that was a good 
suggestion. He stated the best guess was the station would be up and running anywhere 
from June to August 2013. A copy of the site map for the Mogul Fire Station was placed 
on file with the Clerk.   
 
 Chairman Larkin asked if the intent was to use the existing log cabin as 
the living quarters. Chief Moore said it was, but it would take considerable rehabilitation 
to do so. He stated he was not sure the amount of money required for the rehabilitation 
would be less than the cost of building a new residential structure. He said that issue was 
being studied in terms of the budget and the actual site planning benefits of moving the 
log cabin.  
 
 Chief Moore said regarding the operations report, the number of structure 
fires was eight instead of 27. He explained when someone called 9-1-1 to report a 
suspected fire, the dispatcher would note it was a structure fire, and that was how it was 
reported to the incident-reporting software. He explained quite often it was not a structure 
fire when the fire units arrived at the scene. He stated the audited numbers, which were 
being done manually, reflected eight structure fires in September and only four resulted 
in any kind of minimal damage to the residence. He said the structural damage was 
approximately $25,000 for homes with a total value of $1.2 million. He stated his point 
was the District had been very affective in its response to structure and brush fires.  He 
stated the total number of calls where entry into a burning structure was necessary was 
still less than one tenth of one percent, which had been the case since July. 
  
 Chief Moore said some data was finally extracted from the incident-
reporting software, which showed the District was compliant 85 percent of the time with 
the 10-minute response time for suburban land-use designations. He said Station 15, Sun 
Valley, and Station 17, Spanish Springs, represented the bulk of the calls; and Station 15 
made up 50 percent of the total call volume for the entire District. He stated that was due 
to Station 15 having a lot of medical calls and having a higher frequency of fire calls than 
other portions of the District.  
  
 Chairman Larkin noted there was considerable truck movement between 
Stations 15 and 17. Chief Moore advised the stations supported each other due to their 
close proximity. 



PAGE 4  OCTOBER 23, 2012 

 
 Commissioner Humke said he was impressed with the personnel training 
hours reported by the volunteers. He noted some of the volunteer departments did not 
issue a report, which had been an ongoing problem. He suggested presenting a 
Commissioner’s award either monthly or annually for the greatest number of training 
hours achieved, which might serve as a positive motivator for some of the volunteers. 
Chief Moore felt they would be very motivated to take that challenge.  
 
 Commissioner Breternitz said the report gave the Board a detailed view of 
what really happened in the District on a monthly basis and was a great response to the 
Commissioners’ request. He commended the Chief and the District’s staff for providing 
that increased level of detail, and he felt the public would benefit from seeing what was 
happening within the District.   
 
 There was no action taken or public comment on this item. 
 
12-214F AGENDA ITEM 5  
 
Agenda Subject: “Accept a donation of assorted batteries and supplies from 
Herlong Army Depot and Cleanharbors Environmental Services to be utilized in 
operations for TMFPD Career and Volunteer Stations.” 
  
 Fire Chief Charles Moore said one of the Silver Lake volunteers called 
him about these batteries and cleaning supplies, which were still good but were being 
sent to the landfill because they did not meet the Army’s standards. He said staff 
recommended the Board accept the donation.  
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Breternitz, seconded by Commissioner 
Weber, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 5 be accepted.  
 
12-215F AGENDA ITEM 6  
 
Agenda Subject: “Accept a donation of assorted household items and furnishings 
from the Hidden Valley Community neighborhood to be used to furnish Fire Station 
#37 Hidden Valley.” 
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore recommended the Board accept the donation of 
assorted household items and furnishings. He said a lot of people stopped by to look at 
the new station, and he received good feedback from the Hidden Valley community. He 
said the community asked if they could provide some items to make the station more 
comfortable, and the staff report’s Attachment 1 listed the donated items. 
  
 Commissioner Humke noted several of these types of donations had been 
made in the Galena and the Rolling Hills areas by citizens of the Sierra and the Truckee 



OCTOBER 23, 2012  PAGE 5 

Meadows Fire Protection Districts. He stated the citizens did not need to be asked, but 
just stopped by to see what they could do to assist; and he could not thank those citizens 
enough.  
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Humke, seconded by Commissioner 
Breternitz, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 6 be accepted.  
 
12-216F AGENDA ITEM 7 
 
Agenda Subject: “Discussion and possible approval of one job reclassification 
request as evaluated by the Job Evaluation Committee of a Senior Accountant 
Position with increase of pay grade N to a pay grade P with a fiscal impact 
of$14,036.” 
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore said while working to stand up the District, 
discussions with Mary Walker, Walker and Associates; Sheri Mendez, Washoe County 
Finance Director; and Cynthia Washburn, Washoe County Comptroller, resulted in the 
recommendation to upgrade the position to that of a Senior Accountant. He stated 
because of time constraints, it was decided to use a temporary accountant provided by a 
personnel service. He said the position would be advertised as an open-competitive 
position if it was approved by the Board.  
 
 Commissioner Breternitz asked if this would have any effect on the 
District’s consultant. Chief Moore replied Ms. Walker did not perform the day-to-day 
accounting functions. He felt having an accountant on staff would improve the process 
through bank reconciliation and internal-control development; and would make the 
District more self contained. Commissioner Breternitz believed having a competent CPA 
in that position meant there would be certain responsibilities Ms. Walker currently 
handled what would be passed to the staff accountant over time. He stated Ms. Walker’s 
role should be maintained, particularly at the expertise level and the historical level, 
because that would make sense from the long-term strategy standpoint. Chief Moore 
stated Ms. Walker would be involved with the District as long as she wanted to be 
involved, but certainly her role would diminish over time.  
 
 Commissioner Humke stated he wanted to continue Ms. Walker’s contract 
because she had been invaluable to management staff and to this Commission on a day-
to-day basis. He said her knowledge was valuable in providing a historical perspective 
from both the legal and the financial aspects regarding the creation of the Interlocal 
Agreement in 2000. He stated it was important Ms. Walker’s contract remain in place to 
ensure the County did not replicate any of the past mistakes when considering regional 
consolidation in the future.   
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 



PAGE 6  OCTOBER 23, 2012 

 On motion by Commissioner Humke, seconded by Commissioner 
Breternitz, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 7 be approved.  
 
12-217F AGENDA ITEM 8 
 
Agenda Subject: “Discussion and possible approval of a modified staff plan that 
creates one additional Captain Position and freezes one Logistics Officer.” 
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore said the Logistics Officer position was not filled 
when the District was hiring staff. He stated an existing Captain on light duty stepped up 
to perform those functions, and found it was a job he really enjoyed. He said the idea was 
to keep him in the Captain’s role, but assign him to handle logistics. He stated that would 
make an additional Captain available for large emergencies, and there would be no fiscal 
impact to freezing the Logistics Officer position and assigning the Captain to handle 
logistics. He said staffing was being tweaked over time, and this tweak would benefit the 
District. He stated when the job specification was written, the Logistics Officer was 
intended to be a civilian, instead of a firefighter.  
 
 Chairman Larkin asked why not reclassify the Logistics Officer position to 
that of a Captain. Chief Moore said approval would be needed by the Board to create an 
additional Captain. Chairman Larkin stated his point was the Board created a limited 
number of Captains due to the staffing ratio the Board was after, and he was concerned 
about this kind of job creep. Chief Moore said he felt there was a benefit to having the 
additional expertise on hand when there was a large incident, and the Captain would be 
used as a Logistics Officer as well as a firefighter. Chairman Larkin said he understood 
the individual wanted to remain a firefighter, but his concern was this would be setting a 
dangerous precedent because where would it stop and how would the Chief manage it. 
Chief Moore said the constraint was the budget, because no more positions could be 
allocated than there was the financial capacity in the budget to fund them. He said it 
would stop here because there were no further opportunities to do what was being 
considered. Chairman Larkin said it appeared this action was budget neutral. Chief 
Moore replied it was because the Logistics Officer was budgeted at the same pay grade as 
the Captain.  
 
 Commissioner Humke suggested the motion be specific in showing this 
did not have precedential value and, if the Captain left, the Logistics Officer would be a 
non-sworn civilian position. Paul Lipparelli, Legal Counsel, said it would be important to 
consult the labor agreement and confer with Human Resources to determine if setting up 
or pushing down positions conformed to what was agreed to in administering the merit-
pay system for the District. Commissioner Humke suggested continuing this item. Chief 
Moore replied that would not be a problem. Commissioner Breternitz stated the Board 
had been concerned about managing expenses for quite some time, but at some point the 
Board had to say to the Chief that he knew how much money he had and how he would 
get the biggest bang for the buck. He said if it was in the best interests of the District to 
do this swap and as long as nothing was being done that would require a Captain to fill 



OCTOBER 23, 2012  PAGE 7 

that position in the future, he said the Chief had to make decisions based on the money 
and personnel available; and he suggested letting the Chief do his job. 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Breternitz, seconded by Commissioner 
Weber, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 8 be approved.  
 
12-218F AGENDA ITEM 9 
 
Agenda Subject: “Discussion and Action on Resolution Approving the Cooperative 
Agreement for Palomino Valley Water Supply between the Truckee Meadows Fire 
Protection District and the Palomino Valley General Improvement District and 
authorize the Chair to sign the Agreement and the Resolution.” 
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore said the District allocated $30,000 to develop a 
well, so the water could be allocated strictly towards fire protection in the Palomino 
Valley. He said the $30,000 would complete the well, which would provide a source of 
water where there currently was none and would fill tenders more rapidly with water. 
 
 Chief Moore said this agreement had been approved by the Palomino 
Valley GID and, if approved by the Board, construction would commence.  
  
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Weber, seconded by Chairman Larkin, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 9 be approved, authorized 
and executed. The Resolution and Cooperative Agreement for same are attached hereto 
and made a part of the minutes thereof. 
 
12-219F AGENDA ITEM 10  
 
Agenda Subject: “Commissioners'/Manager's announcements, requests for 
information, topics for future agendas, and statements relating to items not on the 
Agenda. (No discussion among Commissioners will take place on this item).” 
 
 Commissioner Breternitz said he would like to meet with Fire Chief 
Charles Moore to give him some ideas he had about the construction of the new fire 
station in Mogul. 
 
 Chief Moore asked if the Board wanted to hold a meeting in November. 
Commissioner Breternitz said he requested having a placeholder to hold a meeting in 
November, which would allow for the discussion and possible approval of an automatic 
aid agreement with the City of Reno if it came to the Board in November. He stated if 
there was no other business, the meeting could be opened and then closed.  
 



PAGE 8  OCTOBER 23, 2012 

12-220F AGENDA ITEM 11 
 
Agenda Subject: “Public Comment. Comment heard under this item will be limited 
to two minutes per person and may pertain to matters both on and off the Board of 
Fire Commissioners agenda. The Commission will also hear public comment during 
individual action items, with comment limited to two minutes per person.  
Comments are to be made to the Commission as a whole.” 

  
There was no public comment. 

 
 * * * * * * * * * * * 
 
11:36 a.m. There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting 
was adjourned without opposition.  
 
 
 
 
  _____________________________ 
  ROBERT M. LARKIN, Chairman 

Sierra Fire Protection District and 
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection 
District 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
AMY HARVEY, County Clerk 
and Ex-Officio Clerk, Sierra Fire  
Protection District and Truckee Meadows  
Fire Protection District 
 
Minutes Prepared By: 
Jan Frazzetta, Deputy County Clerk  










	BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS
	TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
	SIERRA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
	12-208F AGENDA ITEM 2
	CONSENT AGENDA
	12-209F AGENDA ITEM 3A
	12-210F AGENDA ITEM 3B
	12-211F AGENDA ITEM 3C
	12-212F AGENDA ITEM 3D
	12-213F    AGENDA ITEM 4
	12-214F AGENDA ITEM 5
	12-215F AGENDA ITEM 6
	12-216F AGENDA ITEM 7
	12-217F AGENDA ITEM 8
	12-218F AGENDA ITEM 9
	12-219F AGENDA ITEM 10
	12-220F AGENDA ITEM 11
	Jan Frazzetta, Deputy County Clerk



